Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and total comprehensive income (comprising of
loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
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the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresenlalions, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

10.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A’
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1

ii.

iil.

iv.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2023 under the applicable
law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2023.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 50(f)(i) to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 50(f)(ii) to the financial statements); and

(c)Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for
books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting
software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with effect from financial year
beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable.
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13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm_ Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
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Dhiraj Kumar )\
Partner
Membership Number 060466

UDIN: 23060466BGXUXQ6627
Place: Kolkata
Date: April 10, 2023
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata Steel
Special Economic Zone Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
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Partner

Membership Number 060466
UDIN: 23060466BGXUXQ6627
Place: Kolkata

Date: April 10, 2023
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i

ii.

iii.

(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), other than those
disclosed in Note 5 on Right of Use assets to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on
whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount
of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of
our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial
statements does not arise.

(a) The Company is in the business of leasing of real estate and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

(a) The Company has made investments during the year in eleven Mutual Funds schemes. The
Company has not granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, to any
companies / [irms / Limited Liability Partnerships/ other parties, or stood guarantee, or provided
security.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, the terms and conditions under which such investments
were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) The Company has not granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(c),
(ii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified. Further, the provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 73 are not applicable to the
Company as it is a non-banking financial company registered with RBI, engaged in the business
of giving loans.

Vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Companyv
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including goods and services tax, provident fund and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

ix. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
raised funds on short term basis.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year.

x. (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(b). The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-
4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required
to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii.  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. =~ The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the" financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi.(a) ‘I'he Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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xvii.

xviii

XixX.

XX.

xxi.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the

Group has six CICs as part of the Group as detailed in note 51 to the financial statements. We
have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management
is accurate and complete.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutorv auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
Also refer Note 47 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section
135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

q

I, \A-'\I'w 1 K-/ VN O

—_—

Dhiraj Kumar
Partner
Membership Number 060466

UDIN: 23060466BGXUXQ6627
Place: Kolkata
Date: April 10, 2023



Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Amount in INR

As at As at
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{1} Assets =
{1) Non-current assets
(a} Property, plant and equipment 03 1,49,67,35,431 1,11,00,10,282
(b) Intangible assets 04 341,061 9,368,692
{c) Right-of-use assels 05 1,72,36,99,635 1,75,25,51,903
(d) Capital work-in-progress 06 87,43,74,628 1,08.41,99,352
4,09,51,20,755 3,94,77,00,229
(e) Financial assets
(I} Lease receivable 07 41,67,18,851 41,59,74,269
(fy Other financial assets
(i} Security deposits 08 5,68,780 - 5,78,780
(g) Olher non-current assets 09 73,51,890 17.31,662
(h) Tax asset {Net) 10 64,05,093 81,80,210
Total non-current assets 4,52,61,65,369 4,37,41,65,150
"(2) Current assets - T i
(a) Financial assets
() Gashand cash equivalenis 11 12,1568,0718 31,52,36,199
(i) Lease receivable ] 12 ~5,03,47,881 4,88,81,437
{iil) Other financial assets 13 - 7,65,96,289
(b) Other current assets 14 2,32,61,937 3,05,93,491
Total current asseis 19,51,77,896 47,13,07,416
Total assets 4,72,13,43,265 4,84,54,72,566
(1) Equity and liabilities - - B -
{1) Equity -

" {a) Equity share capital 15 4,59,86,16,060 4,08,42,43,890
(b) Olher equity 16 (7,09,33,102) (18,48,36,966)
Total equity 4,52,76,82,958 3,89,94,06,924

(2) Liabilities i

(A} Non-current liabilities
[a) Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities 17 - 3,81,065
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18 2,69,30,269 2,59,85,374
(b) Other non-currert Habilities 18 400863107 4,09,27,699
(c) Provisions 20 5,25 574 5,11,624
Total non-current liabilities 6,75,18,950 6,78,05,762
(B) Current liabilities ) -
(=) Financial iabilities o
(i) Borrowings 2 - 59,00,00,000
(il) Lease liabllities 22 3,36,397 18,66,008
(iii) Trade payables 23
) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprizes === - __ -
. total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 69,03,876 1,16,61,337
(iv) Other financial liabilities 24 10.91.94.794 21,01,73.485
(b) Provisions 25 6,91,386 6.28,978
(c) Other current liabilities 26 90,14,904 6,39,30,072
12,61,41,357 §7,82,59,880
Total liabilitie: 19,36,60,307 94,60,65,642
Total equity and llabllitles 4,72,13,43,265 4,84,54,72,666

The accompanying notes form an integral parl of the inancial slatements,

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Fir

Registration No.304026E/E-300009

Dhiraj Kumar
Partner
Membership No.: 060466

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 10, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(A

Chanakya Chaudhary
Chairman
DIN: 02139568

Manas Bandydpadhyay
Chigf Financial Officer

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 10, 2023
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Prasanta Mallick
Managing Director
DIN: 02347304
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Swati Sheth
Company Secrelary



Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended

Amount in INR

For the year ended

Firm Registration No.304026E/E-300009

d |
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Dhiraj Kumnar \ “Chanakya Chaudhary
Partner Chairman
Membership No.: 060466 DIN: 02139568

Manas Bandydpadhyay
Chief Financial Bfficer

Place: Kolkata Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 10, 2023 Date:April 10, 2023

R - Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
income - )
(a) Revenue from operations i 27 22,48,11,616 35,64,07,61 ﬂ _
(b) Other income B 28 1,61,26,729 85,24,870
Total income 24,09,38,345 36,49,32,480
Expenses
(a) Cost of Sales 29 6,52,02,303 1,24,07,692
(b) Employee benefits expense 30 1,76,63,164 1,16,28,699
(¢) Finance Costs 31 1,31,700 1,94,967
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 14,61,04,000 14,51,56,185
(e) Other expenses 33 6,35,69,197 4,37,84,097
Total expenses 29,26,70,364 21,31,71,640
Profit/ (loss) before tax (5,17,32,019) 15,17,60,840
Income tax expense - 16,77,158
Profit/ (loss) after tax for the year (5,17,32,019) 15,00,83,682
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement (gains) / loss on defined benefit plans 8,044 38,841
Other comprehensive income for the year 8,044 38,841
Total comprehensive profit/ (loss) for the year (5,17,23,975) 15,01,22,523
Earning per equity share
o Basic earning per share { in Rs.) {0.12) 0.37
Diluted earning per share { in Rs.) (0.12) 0.37
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

/th,t_

Prasanta Mallick
Managing Director
DIN: 02347304

}U_\d} 7~
Swati Sheth
Company Secretary



Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 Amount in INR

A) Equity share capital

Particulars Number of shares Amount

|Balance as at April 01, 2021 39,94,60,501 3,99,46,05,010

Changes in equity share capital 89,63,888 8,96,38,880

Balance as at March 31, 2022 40,84,24,389 4,08,42,43,890

Changes in equity share capital 5,14,37,217 51,43,72,170

Balance as at March 31, 2023 45,98,61,606 4,59,86,16,060

B) Other equity

Share application
As at March 31, 2023 money pending Retained earnings Securities premium Total
allotment

At beginning of the year 10 {21,37,00,696) 2,88,63,720 {18,48,36,966)
Loss for the year = (5.17,32,019) - (5,17,32,018)
Other comprehensive income = 8,044 - 8044
Issue of shares - - 16,56,27,839 =
At end of the period 10 (26,54,24,671) 19,44,91,559 (23,65,60,940)

Share application

As at March 31, 2022 money pending Retained eamings Securlties premium Total
allotment —
At beginning of the year 10 (36,38,23,219) - (36,38,23,209)
Profit for the year = 15,00,83,682 - 15,00,83,682
Other comprehensive income - 38,841 - 38,841
Issue of shares - = 2,88,63,720 ~2,88,63,720
At end of the period 10 (21,37,00,696) 2,88,63,720 (18,48,36,966)

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the financial stalements.

This is lhe Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our Reporl of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
J?W)Registraﬁnn No.304026E/E-300009
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Dhiraj Kumar ¥ Chanakya Chaudhary
Partner Chairman
Membership No.: 060466 DIN: 02139568

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 10, 2023

Manas Bandyopafhyay
Chief Minancial Of

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 10, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Prasanta Maflick
Managing Director

DIN: 02347304
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Swati Sheth
Company Secretary
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 Amount in INR
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit/ (loss) before tax for the year (5,17,32,019) 15,00,83,682
Adjustments for: )
Depreciation and amortisation expenses - 14,61,04,000 14,51,66,185_
Dividend/Gain from mutual fund (91,96,573) (52,09,840)
Finance cost 1,31,700 1,94,966
Interest income from financial ass_ets (43,98,098) (30,51,891)
Interest on unwinding of security deposi - (1,11,929)
Interest on lease receivable (5,01,77,568) (27_,10,73,025)
Loss/ (profit) on sale/ discard of property, plani and equipment 83,914 2,80,067 )
Operating profit/(loss) before wo;liing capital changes 3,08,15,356 1,62,68.215”
Adjustments for: i
(Increase)/decrease irTrTc;n-currentl current financial and other assets 5,53,08,095 .25,89,60,384
:;:;z::::/s(decrease) in non-current/ current financial and other liabilities/ (6,59,92,114) 3,39,62,179
Cash generated from operations - 2,01,31,337 30,91,90,778
Income taxes paid 17,75,116 (59,06,756)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,19,06,453 30,32,84,022
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (including capital work (22,54,62,685) (11,07,49,501)
in progress and intangible assets)
" Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 7,357 -
Proceeds from maturity of Fixed Deposit 7,64,00,487 =
- Interest on fixed deposits/ sweep account 45,93,901 . 28,56,088
i Net gain on sale mutual fund 91,96,573 52,09,840

Net cash outflow from investing activities

(13,52,64,367)

(10,26,83,573)

C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Capital 68.00,00.009 =
Repayment of long-term borrowings (75,82,67,841) ®
Principal element of lease payments (18,66,008) (28,59,246)

Interest paid on lease liabilities (1,76,367) (5,79,736)

Net cash inflow {outflow) from financing activities {8,03,10,207) (34,38,982)

Net increase {(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (19,36,68,121) 19,71,61,467
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year (refer Note 11) 31,52,36,199 11,80,74,732
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year (refer Note 11) 12,15,68,078 31,52,36,199

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
ifin Registration No.304026E/E-300009

Dhiraj Kumar®™
Partner
Membership No.: 060466

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 10, 2023

[\A«f&‘“’#

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chanakya Chaudhary

- i ;,ﬂ_..-—-'_\

Prasanta Mallick

Chairman

DIN: 02139568

Manas Bandyopadhyay

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 10, 2023

Managing Director
DIN: 02347304

ot

Swati Sheth
Company Secretary
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

04 - Intangible assets Amount in INR
As at March 31, 2023 Dexf::lllt:ent Software Company Total
Costs Costs Logo
Opening gross carrying amount 11,68,988 12,31,944 4,01,564 28,02,496
Additions - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 11,68,988 12,31,944 4,01,564 28,02,496
Opening accumulated amortisation 7,62,245 6,99,995 4,01,564 18,63,804
Amortisation charge for the year 4,06,743 2,20,888 - 6,27,631
Closing accumulated amortisation 11,68,988 9,20,883 4,01,564 24,91,435
Net carrying amount - opening period 4,06,743 5,31,949 - 9,38,692
Net carrying amount - closing period - 3,11,061 - 3,11,061
As at March 31, 2022 Dexf:::int Software Company Total
Costs Costs Logo
Opening gross carrying amount 11,68,988 12,31,944 4,01,564 28,02,496
Additions - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 11,68,988 12,31,944 4,01,564 28,02,496
Opening accumulated amortisation 1,77,750 4,79,107 3,68,927 10,25,784
Amortisation charge for the year 5,84,495 2,20,888 32,637 8,38,020
Closing accumulated amortisation 7,62,245 6,99,995 4,01,564 18,63,804
Net carrying amount - opening period 9,91,238 7,52,837 32,637 17,76,712
Net carrying amount - closing period 4,06,743 5,31,949 - 9,38,692
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 Amount in INR

05 - Right-of-use assets

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Carrying amounts of:

Leasehold land 1,72,33,84,758 1,75,03,47,753

Office building 3,14,877 22,04,150

Total 1,72,36,99,635 1,75,25,51,903
As at March 31, 2023 Leasehold land Office building Total
Opening gross carrying amount 1,83,34,83,596 1,34,39,235 1,84,69,22,831
Additions - - -
Disposals ] > 1,04,47,888 1,04,47,868
Closing gross carrying amount 1,83,34,83,596 29,91,347 1,83,64,74,943
Opening accumulated depreciation 8,31,35,842 1,12,35,086 9,43,70,928
Charge for the year 2,69,62,996 18,89,272 288,562,268
Disposals - S ~ 71,04,47,888 1,04,47,888
Closing accumulated depreciation 11,00,98,838 26,76,470 11,27,75,308
Net carrying amount - opening period 1,75,03,47,753 22,04,150 1,75,25,51,903
Net carrying amount - closing period 1,72,33,84,758 3,14,877 1,72,36,99,635
As at March 31, 2022 Leasehold land Office building Total
Opening gross carrying amount 1,85,87,95,930 1,04,47,888 1,86,92,43,818
Additions - 29,91,347 29,91,347
Disposals (2,53,12,334) - (2,53,12,334)
Closing gross carrying amount 1,83,34,83,596 1,34,39,235 1,84,69,22,831
Opening accumulated depreciation 5,69,48,406 80,77,855 6,50,26,261
Charge for the year 2,71,46,989 31,57,231 3,03,04,220
Disposals (9,59,553) - (9,59,553)
Closing accumulated depreciation 8,31,35,842 1,12,35,086 9,43,70,928
Net carrying amount - opening period 1,80,18,47,524 23,70,033 1,80,42,17,557
Net can'ying amount - closing period 1,75,03,47,753 22,04,150 1,75,25,51,903

(i) Refer to note 34 for disclosure with respect to leases as per Ind AS 116.
(ii) Out of the total areas of 2955 acres, 226 acres are subleased as on March 31,2023 (226 acres as on March 31, 2022)

(iii) The Company is in the process of developing an Industrial Park at Gopalpur, in Ganjam District of Odisha over a land
parcel of 2970 acres. The Industrial park includes a muiti-product special economic zone and domestic tariff area, Land
admeasuring 1235 acres meant for development of special economic zone has been leased in favour of the Company by
industrial Infrastructure Development Corporation of Odisha and the same has been notified as Special Economic Zone by
Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Government of India. Land admeasuring 1735 acres is meant for development of
domestic tariff area, out of which 1720 acres have been leased in favour of the Company by Industrial Infrastructure
Development Corporation of Odisha in financial year 2018-19 and remaining 15 acres is in process of being acquired by
the Company.
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2023

Amount in INR

As at March
31, 2022

06- Capital work-in-Progress

Capital work-in-progress 87,43,74,628

1,08,41,99,352

87,43,74,628

1,08,41,89,352

Ageing for Capital-work-in progress (CWIP}) as at March 31, 2023

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Capital-work-in progre: Total
apitak-wortcin progress Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year
Capital works-in-progress at Gopalpur site 21,79,36,510 8,2562,810 9,90,84,644 47,47,90,664 87,43,74,628
Projecls temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 21,79,36,510 8,25,62,810 | 9,90,84,644 47,47,90,664 87,43,74,628
Ageing for Capltal-work-in progress (CWIP) as at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital- i Total
apital-work-in progress Les‘s,et:ran 1 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3 years
Capital works-in-progress at Gopalpur site 15,52,03,172 | 10,93,32,464 | 16,30,12,237 65,66,51,479 1,08,41,99,352
Projects temporarily suspended - i - m =
Total 15,52,03,172 | 10,93,32,464 | 16,30,12,237 65,66,51,479 1,08,41,99,352
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
07 - Lease receivable - Non Current
Lease receivable 41,67,18,851 41,59,74,269
41,67,18,851 41,59,74,269
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
08- Security deposits - Non Current
Uinsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Security deposits 568,780 578,780
5,68,780 5,78,780
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
09 - Other non-current assets _
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Balance with government authorities - _ =
Capilal advances 73,51,890 17,31.662
73,51,890 17,31,662
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
10- Tax asset (Net)
Advance tax i 64,05,093 81,80,210
64,05,093 81,80,210
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
11- Cash and cash equivalents
Balarce with bank - -
In current account 9,22,078 29,90,68,541
Deposits with original maturily of less than three months 12,06,46,000 1,61,67,658
12,15,68,078 31,52,36,199

S P A -aas;
153

)

== -
~ Chariered A/20uniants |

304025 /E-2000L8




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 Amountin INR
As at Ae at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
12- Lease receivable - Current
Lease receivable 5,03,47 881 4,88,81,437
5,03,47,881 4,88,81,437
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
13- Other financial assets - Current
Accrued interest on sweep account - 1,985,803
Others - 764,00 486
- 7,65,96,289
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31,2022
14- Other current asseis
Other loans and Advances 13,91,726 6,74,867
Balance with government authorities 218,70,211 2.99,18,624
2,32,61,937 3,05,93,491

15- Equity share capital

Number of Amount
shares

Authorised equity share capital:
As at April 01, 2021 55,00,00,000 5,50,00,00,000
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 55,00,00,000 5,50,00,00,000
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 55,00,00,000 5,50,00,00,000
Authorised preference share ital
As at April 01, 2021 20,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 20,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000
Increase during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2023 20,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000
(i} Movements in equity share capital:
As at April 01, 2021 39,94,60,501 3,99,46,05,010
Share issued to Tata Steel Limited (ultimate holding company) 89,63,888 8,96,38,880
As at March 31, 2022 40,84,24,389 4,08,42,43,890
Share issued to Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd. 5,14,37,217 51,43,72,170
As at March 31, 2023 45,98,61,606 4,59,86,16,060

Terim and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- (March 31, 2022: Rs. 10/-) per share. Each holder of equity shares is

entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Mesting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. ! he distribution will be in proportion to the number of equlty shares held by the shareholders.

" . As at As at March
(i} Shares of the company held by holding company March 31, 2023 31, 2022
| ata Steel Utilitics and Infrastructurs Servicae: Ltd (nota 1) 45,98,81,606 40,84,24 380

45,98,61,606 40,84,24,389

Note 1

During the FY 2021-22, Tata Steel Limited (TSL), carried out a corporate level restructuring of its portfolio. Accordingly, Tata Steel Utilities and
Infrastructure Services Limited (TSUISL), a wholly owned subsidiary of TSL, had been identified as the holding company of the Ulilities and
Infrastructure Services cluster. Subsequently, TSL’s holding (other than shares held jointly with nominees) in the Company had been transferred to
TSUISL.

{iii} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
articul Number of % holding Number of % holding
shares shares
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd 45,98.61.606 100% 40,84,24,389 100%
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Tata Steel Speclal Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

{iv) Details of shareholding of promoters:

Amount In INR

As at March 31,2023

% of total
Name of the promoter Number of shares| number of %.of change
shares during the year
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd 45,98,61,546 100% 0%
Tata Steel Limited - 0% 0%
Mr. Deepak Kamath* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Pranay Sinha* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Ramadhar Rai* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Rabindra K Singh* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Sanjay Kumar* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Pramod Kumar Singh Rathore* 10 0% 0%
Total 45,98,61,606 0% 0%
As at March 31, 2022
% of total
Name of the promoter Number of shares| numberof | °ofchange
shares during the year
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd 40,84,24,329 100% 100%
Tata Steel Limited - 0% -100%
Mr. Deepak Kamath* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Pranay Sinha* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Ramadhar Rai* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Rabindra K Singh* 10 0% 0%
Mr. Sanjay Kumar® 10 0% 0%
Mr. Pramod Kumar Singh Rathore* 10 0% 0%
Total 40,84,24,389 0% 0%
*The above mentioned persons are nominee shareholders on behalf of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd.
(v) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash
As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2023 31, 2022
Number of shares Number of shares|
Shares issued to ultimate holding company as consideration for liability existing in the books - 89,63,888|
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022

16 - Other equity

(i) Retained earnings

Opening balance (21,37.00,696) ~ (36,38,23,219)
_ Add: Net Profit / (Ioss) for the year (5.17.32.019) 15,00,83.682
Add: ltems of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained eamings
- Other comprehensive income for the year 8,044 38,841

Closing balance

(26,54,24,8671)

(21.37,00,696)

{ii) Securities premium

Opening balance 2,88,63,720 -

Received from Tata Steel Limited, ultimate holding company 16,56,27,839 2,88,63,720

Closing balance 19,44,91,559 2,88,63,720

(il Share application money pending allotment

Opening balance 10 10

Received from Tata Steel Limited, ullimate holding company : 11.85.02,600

Received from Tata Steel Utilities and Infrasiruclure Services Ltd 68,00,00.009 -

68,00,00,019 11,85,02,610

Less: Share allotted 514372170 8,96,38,880

Less: Securities premium 16,56,27.839 2,88,63,720

Closing balance 10 10

(7,08,33,102) (18,48,36,966)
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022

17 - Lease liabilities - Non Current

Lease liabilities = 3,81,065

3,81,065




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

Amount in INR

As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
18 - Other financial liabilities - Non Current
Security deposits 2,69,30,269 2,59,85,374
2,69,30,269 2,59,85,374
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
19 - Other non-current Liabilities
Prepaid rent - land sublease 4,00.63,107 4,09,27 699
4,00,63,107 4,09,27,699
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
20 - Provisions - Non Current
Gratuity (Refer Note 37) 5,25 574 511,624
5,25,574 5,11,624
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
21 - Borrowings
Lean from ultimate holding Company - 59,00,00,000
i 59,00,00,000
Borrowings:
B} As at As at
Particulars Terms of repayment Coupon/ Interest rate March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured

Inter corporate deposit

A 10.58%
from Tata Steel Limited One year (March 31, 2022 70,03,34,706
(including accrued 9.5%)
interest)
Less: Interest accrued (Net of TDS) 11,03,34,706
Princlpal amount of borrowing 59,00,00,000
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
22 - Lease liabllities - Current - o
Lease liability 3,36,397 18,66.008
3,36,397 18,66.008
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
23 - Trade payables
Total outstanding dugs of micro and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues other than micre and small enterprises 62,03,876 1,16,61,337
69,03,876 1,16,61,337

L
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

Trade payables ageing as at March 31, 2023

Amount In INR

Outstanding for following perieds from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2years 2-3 years
year years
Undisputed trade
payables
Micro enterprises
and small - - - . - -
enterprises
Others 30,61,020 36,07,526 2,35,330 69,03,876
Disputed trade
payables
Micro enterprises
and small - = = = 4 z
enterprises
Others -~ - - = - -
Total 30,61,020 36,07,526 2,35,330 - - 69,03,876
Trade payables ageing as at March 31, 2022
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2years 2-3 years
year years
Undisputed trade
payables
Micro enterprises
and small - - g = 2 E
enterprises
Others 28,72,875 54,45.264 30,20.511. 79,163 243,524 - 1,16,61,337
Disputed trade
payables
Micro enterprises
and small - u = - - -
enterprises
Others - * = - = E
Total 28,72.875 54,465,264 30,20,511 79,163 2,43,524 - 1,16,61,337
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
24 - Other financial liabilities - Current
Employee related |iabllities 26,88,68/ 27,35,863
Security deposit 2.11.500 2,11,500
Payable for purchase ol property, plant and equipment 10,62,94,607 9,68,91,416
Interest accrued on borrowings - 11,03,34,706
10,91,94,794 21,01,73,485
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
25 - Provisions - Current
Gratuity (Refer Note 37) 3,787 3.754
Leave benelits 8,87,599 6.25.224
6.91,386 6,28,978
As at As at March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
26 - Other current liabilities
Statutory dues - 20,70,217 56,35,666
Advance from customer 60,80,087 5,74,29,806
Prepaid rent - land sublease 8,64 600 8,64, 600
90,14,904 6,39,30,072
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Amount in INR

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

27 - Revenue from operations

Income from lease rent and other services 17,46,34,048 8,53,34,585
Other operating income 5,01,77,568 27,10,73,025
22,48,11,616 35,64,07,610

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

28 - Other income

Gain on sale of Mutual fund 91,96,573 52,09,840
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost 43,98,098 30,51,891
Interest on income tax refund 4,50,443 41,892
Unwinding of discount on security deposits - 1,11,929
Other miscellaneous income 20,811,615 1,09,318
1,61,26,729 85,24,870

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

29- Cost of Sales

Cost of Sales

6,52,02,303

1,24,07,692

6,52,02,303

1,24,07,692

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

30- Employee benefits expense

Salary, wages and bonus 1,60,87,668 1,00,91,513
Contribution to provident fund 8,26,322 7,22,049
Gratuity 2,18,469 2,16,451
Staff welfare expenses 5,30,705 5,98,686

1,76,63,164 1,16,28,699

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

31- Finance costs

Interest on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit 6,43,70,150 5,60,50,000

or loss

Interest on lease liabilities 1,31,700 1,94,967

Less: Amount capitalised (see note below) (6,43,70,150) (5,60,60,000)
1,31,700 1,94,967

Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the actual interest
rate applicable to the entity's borrowings during the year in this case is 10.58% (March 31, 2022: 9.50%).

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

32- Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 11,66,24,101 11,40,13,945
Amortisation of intangible assets 6,27,631 8,38,020
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,88,52,268 3,03,04,220

14,61,04,000 14,51,56,185
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Amount in INR

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

33- Other expenses

Legal & professional fees 17,61,409 15,29,829
Telecommunication expenses 68,187 9,992
Auditors remuneration
- As Audit Fees 91,000 91,000
- Out of Pocket Exp. 1,08,920 -
Outsourcing expenses 3,21,33,896 2,27,85,977
Travelling and conveyances 19,52,184 3,16,780
Directors’ sitting fee - 40,000
Marketing expenses 21,50,326 3,96,719
Rates & taxes 1,33,74,881 1,37,32,313
Loss on sale/ discard of property plant and equipment (Net) 83,914 N 2,80,067
Miscellaneous expenses 1,18,44,480 46,01,420
6,35,69,197 4,37,84,097




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

1) Background

Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in India with its registered office
in Bhubaneswar, Odisha.

The Company, a 100% subsidiary of Tata Utility Services Company Limited, is in the process of developing an Industrial Park at
Gopalpur, in Ganjam District of Odisha. Tata Steel Limited is the ulimate holding company of the company.The Industrial park
includes a Domestic Tariff Area and a multi-product Special Economic Zone in which the Company will act as a developer.

2) Significant Accounting Policies:

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the presentation of these financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

(ili) Current versus Non-current Classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.
(A) An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

b) held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assels are classified as non-current.

(B) A liability is classifled as current when:

a) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) itis due to be setlled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as Non-current.

(iv) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments did not
have any impacl on lhe amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

{v) New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules') which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments
to Ind A8 notified by thece rulec are primarily in tha natura of clarifications

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable futura transactions Spacifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12
as the group’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

2.2 Critical Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the
years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods
affected.

This note provides an averview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materally adjusted due to estimales and assumplions lurning oul to be different than those originally assessed.
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

The areas involving critical estimates or Judgements are:
(a) Impairment

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering current
economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatory
conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using intemal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value

(b) Estimation of Expected Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets— Notes 2.3, 2.4,
3 and 4

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may
change the utility of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure ihat is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they occurred.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value :

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful
lives.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's experts which are same as those
specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 or determined basis technical evaluation done by the management to reflect
actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the assets.

The estimated useful lives for the categories of property, plant and equipment are:

Partlculars Estimated useful life
Buildings and other structures 3 to 30 years
Roads 3to 5 years
Fumiture and fixtures 5to 10 years
Office Equipment 3 to 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Eleclrical Installation and Equipment 10 years
Laboratory Equipment 10 years
Plant & Machinery 30 to 35 years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

2.4 Intanglble assnta

Intangible assets have a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

(a) Computer Software

Computer Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. Subsequent costs associated
with maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of computer software includes license fees and cost of
implementation/system integration services, where applicable.

Computer Software are amortised on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years from
the date they are available for use. Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periedically including at each financial year end.

(b) Website development and Company logo

Website development and company logo related costs, which is primarily carried by third-party vendors is capitalised. Subsequent
costs associated with maintaining such website is recognised as expense as incurred.




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limlted
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(c) Amortisation methods and perlods

The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Particulars Estimated useful life (years)
Computer Software 3to 5 years
Website development 3 years
Company logo 2 years

2.5 Impalrment of Assets

Assels are tesled for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value in use is the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units).

2.6 Leases

As a Lessee:

Leases are recognised as right of use assets and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the company. Contract may contain both lease and non lease components. The Company allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non lease components based on their relative standalone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities inciude the net present value
of the following lease payment: -

(a) Fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentive receivable.

(b) Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or a rate at the
commencement date.

(c) Amount expected to be paid by the Company under residual value guarantees.

(d) Exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

(e) Payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: -

(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability.

(b) Any lease payment made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentive received.
(¢}  Anyinitial direct cost and

(d) Restoration costs.

Right of use of assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight line basis.

Payment associated with short-term leases of equipment and all the leases of low value assets are recognised on a straight line basls
as an expenses in the statement of profit and loss. Short term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the Icasc
term. Initial direct costs incurred in relation to an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the
lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net Investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of retum on the net investment
outstanding In respect of the lease.

2.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held with
banks / financial institutions with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.8 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the year in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of tuhds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange direrences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowlng
costs.
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2.9 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount can be reliably measured, and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the company’s activities as described below. The company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant leases.
2.10 Foreign Currency transactions and translation

(a) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the curmency of the primary econemic environment in
which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rupees or Rs.),
which is the Company's functional and presentation cumency.

(b) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At
the year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the year-end exchange rates. The
exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the year-end restatement are recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss.

2.11 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term Employee Benefit:

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(b) Other Long-Term Employee Benefit Obligation

Long-term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation, as per projected unit credit method, done at the end
of each financial year. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Post-employment obligations

Defined Benefit Plans:

The liability recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefil obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in 'Employee Benefits Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement galns and losses arising from experience adjustinents and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. These are included in 'Retained Eamnings’ in the Statement of
Changes in Equity.

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions under defined contribution plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised as expenses for the period
in which the employee has rendered the service.

2,12 Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. The expenses relating to a provision is recognised in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.
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2.13 Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the cumrent period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probabile that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current {ax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
olher comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

214 Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional as they do not contain significant financing components. The
Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

2.15 Investments and other Financial Assets

i. Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

— Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

— Those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instrument, this will depend on the business model in which the investment in held. For investment in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

ii. Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the group commits to
purchasa or sale the financial asset

iii. Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs ihat are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

a. Debt Instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt Instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the assel and e cash llow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:
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- Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the cash flows represents solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part
of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {FVOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses, if any, which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
ihe cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss and recognised
in Other Income/Other Expenses.

- Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within 'Other Income'/"Other Expenses’ in the period in
which it arises.

b. Equity Instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in 'Other Income/Other Expenses' in the

statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

iili. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost and
FVOCI debt instruments, if any. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109- “Financial Instruments”, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised at the time of initial recognition of the receivables.

iv. De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when:
- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets, or

~ Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual obligation to
pay the cash flows to one or more recipient.

Where the company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if it has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains
control of {he financial asset, the asset continues to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

v.Income recognition

- Interest Income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

' Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.16 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

2.17 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable rights must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.18 Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

a) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Earnings per share

{i) Basic earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:
a) The profit attributable to owners of the Company

b) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take into account:
— The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

— The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.19 Borrowlings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Rorrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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34. Discl of Right-of-use assets (ROU) and Lease liability as perInd AS 116

Amount in INR

|i\mount recognised in Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022|

Right of Use assets

Leasehold Land 1.72,33,84,758 1,75,03,47,753
Office Building 3,14,877 22,04,150
Total 1.72,36,99,635 1,75,25,51,903

Lease liabilities

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Current 3,36,397 18.66,008
Non-current - 3,81,065)
Total 3,36,397 22,47,073)
A gnised in the of profit and loss As at March 31, 2023|  As at March 31, 2022
I on lease liabilities 1.21,700 1,894,967
Depreciation charge for the Year 2,88,52.268 3,03,04.220
Total 2,89,83,968 3,04,99,187
Total cash aulflew for leases for the year | 20,42.3?5[ 34,308,982

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments afler the reporting period.

Maturity analysis of lease payments

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Less then one year 3.40,3%6 20,42,37€
One fo two years - 3,40,396.00
Total undi ted lease pay t: 3,40,396 23,82,772

35. Contingent Liability and Commitments:

(a) There is no contingent liability as al March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 which are required to be disclosed in the financial stalements.

(b) Commitments:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Eslimated amount of contracls remaining to be executed on Capilal accouni and nol provided for

18,69,45,171

19,26,09,139

36. There are no amounts payable of micro and small enlerprises as at March 31,2023 and March 31,2022, There are no micro and small enterprises to whom the
Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during lhe years ended March 31,2023 and March 31,2022. This information as required to be
disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined o the exient such parlies could be idenlified on the basis of

information available wilh the Company.
37. Employee Benefits:

i.Defined Contribution Obligation:
The C

y mainfains a pi

ident fund with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12%

of basic salary as per regulation. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount conlribuled and it has no further contractual nor any conslructive
obligation. The expenses recognised during the period towards defined coniribution plan is Rs. 826,322 (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 721,319}

ii.Defined Benefit Obligation:

Tho Company has defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Graluity Acl, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 4 years and 6
months are eligible to get gratuity. The amount of graluity payable on retirement/ {fermination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proporiionately for 15 days mulliplied with number of years of completed services. The graiulty plan |s unfunded plan.

The amounis recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the nel defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Gratuity Benefit:

The amounts recognised in ihe balance sheet and the mavements in the net dafinar hanafit nhligation nver the yaar are as follows:

Changes in Present Value of Obligation

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Present value of 1 - Opening 5,15.378 3.37.768
Current Service Cosl 1,88,142 1,91.625
Interest Cost an.327 24,820
Acluarial gain/loss on due 1o Change in Financial Assumplion 7.283 (34.823)
Actuarial gainflioss on oblipations due o Linexpected Experienrs {15,.327) (4,018)
Benellls paid (1,98.442) -
Present value of obli - Closing 5,29,361 5,15.378
Table sh ion to Bal Sheet:

Reconciliation to Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Fund Liability

5,29,361

515,378
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Table Showing Plan Assumptions:

Plan assumptions

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Discount Rale 7.27% 7.35%
Rate of Compensation lncrease (Salary Inflati 6.00% 6.00%
Average expeclad fulure service | warking Lifa) 23 22
(Average Duration of Liabilities 23 22
Mortality Table [ALM 2012-2014 IALM 2012-2014

Ultimate Ullimate'
Superannualion at aga 60 €0
Earty Retirement & Disablement (All Causes Combined) 1.00% 1.00%

Table showing Expense Recognised in 1t of Profit and Loss:

p r g| in of Profit and Loss

As at March 31,2023

As at March 31, 2022

Current Service Cost 1,88,142 1,91,625
Interest Cost 30,327 24,826
[Benefit Cost{E> R ized in St of Profit and loss) 2,18,469 2,16,451

Table showing amouni recogmised in Cther Camprehansive incoma:

Other Comprehensive Income

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Act | gain/loss on ohiigalions due to Change in Fir ik A pli 7.283 34,823
Actuanial gainiloss on obigations dus fo Unexpecizd Experamce {15:327) 4,018
] for the year recegnised in Other © t il (8,044) 38,841
Table showing Sensitivity Analysis:

Sensitivity Analysis As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Dhacoun! Rate {+ 1%} 4,85 800 5,77.972 4.74.622 560,541
v:Change-Compared to base dus (o sensilivity -B.21% 9.18% -7.91% B.76%
Salary Growlh {-/+ 1%) 5.78.126 485408 5.60.705 474137
%Change Compared to base due to sensilivily 9.21% -8.30% 8.80% -8.00%

Risk Exposure

Interesl rate volalility: - The gratuity liability is calculated using discount rale set with reference to Government securities yield. If there is any change in yield of

Govemment securilies, ihe provision may change accordingly.

Life expectancy:- The gratuity plan obligation is to provide benefils for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will resull in an increase in the plan’s
liabilities. This is parlicufarly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensilivity 1o changes in life expeciancy.

iii.Leave Benefits:

The Company provides for accumulation of leave by its employees. The employees can carry forward a portion of lhe unutilised leave balances and utilise it in
future periods or receive cash in lieu lhereof as per the Company's policy. The Company records a provision for [eave benefils in the period in which the employee
renders the services ihat increases this entillement. This is an unfunded plan.

The lotal provision recorded by the Company {owards these benefits as at year end was Rs. 687,599/~ (March 31, 2022: Rs.625,224/-).

38. Computation of Eamings Per Share (EPS}):

Particul Current Year Pravious Year
Prafitl (Lass) far the year (6.17,32 019) 15,00,83 682
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 40,84 24,389 39,54,60,501
HNumbar of equily shares al the end of {ha year 45 98 61,606 40,8424 389
Welghied average number of shares copsldernd for cnmputalion of Basie and Dilulerd EPS (Numbars) 41,46 98 647 40,41 ,51,1693
Face Value of Each Equity Share (in Rs.) 1Q 10
Basic and Diluted eaming per share ( in Rs.) (0.12) 0.37
39. lated Parties T ti

Relaled party disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 24 prescribed under the act.

i. List of Related Parties and Relationship

Name of the Related Parties Description of Relationship

Tata Steel Limited Ultimate holding company

T satwal Liklitims, and Tntrasimchinn Sacvicas Dimian

TAAMREIATA [elaing earmpAry

Swall Shell (Company S

Prasania Mallick (M Director from July 01, 2018) Ky A Parson
Maonaas Bandyopndhymy [Chi Foplnmber 06, 2021) Foy h | Poraon

ey Wk sgen ] Fersun

Qs -
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ii, Details of Related Party T il and bal: ing

Transactions

Tata Steet

{Ultimate Holding C )

Limited

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

|Equity Share Capital issued

11,85.02,600.00

I walh Equity share capilal Issued (Non-Cash Transfer) - 11,85,02,600.00
nter-carg deposi received! il paid -75,82,67,841 59,00,00,000
ncome from leass rent 553,447,749 5,35,13,241
Outsourcing Expenses (Including GST) 3,22,51,922 3,39.17,449
Legal and Pr K Fees (Including GST) 2,88.616 2.41,551

6,43,70,150 5,60,50,000

Interest expenses on borrowings

Balances outstanding as at the year end

Tata Steel Limited
{Ultimate Holding Company)

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

{Interest acerued on barrawings

Share Application Meney pending Allofment 10 10
Trade Payables- Current 27,62 bi4 78,75.730
|Borrewings- Current - 58,60.00,000

= 11,03,34,706

Transactions

Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services
Ltd (Holding Company)

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Equity Share Capital issued

68,00,00,009

Transactions

Diractor

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31. 2022

Sitling Fees

40,000

The remuneralion {o key managerial personnel does not include provisions made for gratuity and leave benefils as they are determined on an acluarial basis for

the Company as a whale.

Mr. Prasania Mallick, Managing Direclor, Tata Steel Special Econemic Zone Limited is on Deputalion from Tata Sleel Limited wilh effect from July 01, 2019, his

remuneration is shown under Oulsourcing expenses.

Mr. Manas Bandyopadhyay, Chief Financial Officer, Tala Steel Special Economic Zone Limiled is on Deputalion from Tata Sieel Limited wilh effect from Seplember

06, 2021, his remuneration is shown under Oulsourcing expenses,

Ms. Swati Sheth, Company Secrelary, Tala Sleel Special Economic Zone Limiled is appoinled wilh effect from April 16, 2021, she is entiteled 1o a nominal

remuneration of Rs. 1/- per annum,

40.Deferred Tax:

The deferred tax liability is primarily in respect of property, plant and equipment. As the company is in the process of initial phase of setling up the industrial park,
the company has recognised deferred {ax assel on unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses 1o the exienl of deferred lax liability, resulting in net

deferred iax liability of Nil (previous year: Nil).

Particulars Asat M"‘go:’;z' Charge/Credit| As at March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Liability on property, plant and equipment 1,69,72,311 98,60,644 2,68,32,955
Deferred Tax Asset on carried forward of lax losses 1.69,72,311 98,60,644 2,68.32,955
Net | .| E
Particulars Asat Mamgoa",’l{ Charge/Credit|] As at March 31, 2022
Deferred 1ax Liability on property, plant and equipment ) | 7091278 98,81,033 1,69,72,311
Deferred Tax Assets on carried forward of 1ax losses 70,911,278 26,81,033) 1,69,72.311
Net .| - -

41. Fair value measuromont
Financial insirument by calegory

‘:articulars As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Financial assets Amortised cost Amortised cost
Security Depoaslits LY, 76U b, 24, 78U
Trade receivables - -
Cagh and cash equivalents 14, 10b,G0,U/8 41,52, 166
Other ial assels - 7.65,96,289
Lease receivabie (Current and Non Current) 46,70,66,732 46,48,55.706
Total Financial assets 58,92,03.590 85,72,66,974
Financial liabilities

Lease liabililies 3.36.397 22,47,073
Other financial liabililies 13,61.25.063 23,61,58,859
Borrowings - 59,00,00,000]
Trade payables 69,03,876 1,16,61,337
Total Financial liabilities 14,33,65,336 84,00.67,269

The fair value of hese assets and liabililies is not significantly different from their carrying values.
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42, Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial instrumenls comprise financial liabilities and financial assets. The Company's principal financial liabililies comprise of trade
payable, borrowings and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operalions.

- Risk exposures and responses

The Company manages its exposure to key financial risks in accordance with the direction of board of directors. The main risks hal could adversely affecl the
Company's financial asselts, liabilities or future cash flows are foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. Management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of hese risks which are summarized below.

(a) Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk lhat the fair value or fulure cash flows of an exposure will flucluate because of changes in foreign exchange rales. The Company
undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies due 1o which exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Presenilly, lhe exposure o foreign currency
risk is not significant,

{b) Liquidity risk

Liquidily risk is defined as the risk that ihe Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations or at a reasonable price. The Company's ireasury department is
respansible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement mar 1L In addition, p and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
Managementi monilors the Company's net liquidily posilion through roliing forecasts on ihe basis of expecied cash flows,

The Company's objective is o mainlain a balance between continuity of funding and Rexibility through the use of cash credits, bank loans among ethers.

The tables below analyse lhe Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their conlraclual malurities. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contraclual undiscounied cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant

Particulars Carrying Amount Contractual Cash Batwaen 0 to 1 Between 1 to 3 Years| More than 3 years
flows Years

As at March 31, 2023 |

a) Lease Liabililies 3.36,397 3.36,397 3,36,397 - -

b} Trade payables 69,03 BYE 69,03 876 £9.03.876 - -

c Other financial abiities 13,61.25 063 13,61,25 063 10,891,594, 794 - 2,69,30.269

d) Borrowings {Current} - - - - -

As at March 31, 2022

a) Lease Liabilities 22,47,073 23,82,772 20,42,376 3,40,396.00 -

b) Trade payabl 1,16,61.337 1.16.61.337 1,16,61,337 - -

) Other financial liablii 23,61,58,859 28,87 26,382 21,01,73,485 11,94, 706 7,73,58,191

d) Borrowings (Current) £8,00,00,000 539,00,00,000 59,00,00,000 - -

(c) Credit Risk:

Credit risk is (he risk of financial loss arising from the counter pariy failure 1o repay or service debl according to the conlractual terms and Financial
instruments that are subjecied 1o concentralion of credit risk principally consists of investments, trade and other receivables. None of Lhe financial instruments of
lhe Company resulis in lhe malerial concentralioen of the credil risk.

43. Capital Management

(a) Risk Management

The Company's capilal management is inlended to create value for shareholders by facilitaling the achievement of lang-lerm and short-lerm goals of the
Company.

The Company delermines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with leng-term and short term strategic invesiment and
expansion plans.The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from operalions, borrowings.

The Company monitors the capital slructure an the basis of nel debt {o equity ratic and maturity profile of the overall debt portfelio of the Company.

Net debl includes interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, olher bank balances and current investments.

The {able below summarises the capital, nel debt and nel debt lo equity ratio of the Company.

lP:.rlIculars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022

iEguH.I share capital 4,68,86.16,060 41,0842 43,880
Other aquity -7,008,33,102 -18.48 36 068
Totalequity () _— 4,52,76,82,958 3.89,94 06,924
Current berrowings including accrued interest 1] 70,03,34.706
Lease chligalions 3,36,397 72.47,073
Gross debt (B) 3,36,397 70,25,81,779
Taotal capital {A+B) 4,52,80,19,355 4,60,19,88,703
Gross debl as above 3,36,397 70,25.81,778
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 12,15,68,078 31,62,36,199
|Less: Other balances with banks 0 7,65.66,289
Net debt (C) -12.12.31.68 31,07.49,201
|Net debt to equity ratie® -0.03 0.08
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44, Leases as a Lessor:-

The Company has classified lease of shed as a finance lease, because at the inception date, the present value of lhe lease payments amounts {o al leasl

subsiantially all of the fair value of the shed.

) The following lable sels out the malurity analysis of lease recaivables, showing ihe undiscounted lease 1o ba d after the reparting date:
Maturity analysis of lease receivable under Finance Leasa As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Upto one year 03,47,880 4,88,81,437
One io tweo years 5 18.58,317 5,03.47 880
Two lo three years 5,34, 14,068 5,18.58,317
Three to four years 5,50,16.488 53414066
Four to five years 5,66,66,881 50,16 486
More than five years B7,62,90,250 9328,57,232
Total undr fod lease | L bl 1,14,35,83,884 1,19,24,75,421
] i finance income {67 .65,27.1562) (72,76,19,717)
Net i in lease 46,70,66,732 A6,48,55,704
b) Finance income on the nel Investment in ihe lease recognized during Lhe year is Rs. 5,01,77,568/-. (March 2022, Rs. 499,61,807)
c) Maturity analysis of lease payments under Operaling Lease
Unidi d lease pay to be d on an annual basis As MI Asat
March 31, 2023] March 31, 2022,
Upto one year B59,.24,938) B86,90,171
One 1o two years 01,66, 749) 80 24 030
Two lo three years 94.15813 91,66,749
Thres 1o four years 86,72.350| 64,15.813)
Four o Five years 549,36,574 96,723 |
Mare than Five years 1904 45338 20.03,81.912]
Total i ted loase pay Tvabli 23,?5.51.?’5.’!’ 24,52.51,934'
45. Net Debt Reconciliation :-
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in nel debt for each of the periods presented.
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Currant b o ineluding acsrued interest - 70,0334 706
Lease Habilities 3,36,387 2247073
Nat dobt 3,36,397 70,25,81,778
Particul: Liabifities from activities
articulars Current borrowings Lease liabilities
Net debt as at 1 April 2022 70,03,34,706 22 47,073
Add/ less:
Proceeds from borrowings during the yzar - -
Borrowings reclassed during the year - -
Payment of lease liability > (20.42.376)
|Interest on Jease flability - 1.31.700
Borrowing cost capilali: 6,43,70,150 =
TDS deposiled an behall of lender _(B4,37.015 S
p it of borrowings during the year -
Net debt as at 31 March 2023 3.36,397

46. Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(i) Current tax = 16.77,158

Current tax on profits for the year - 16,77,158

(1) Deferred lax ]
B i Y in defarred tax assels (98.60,644) (98.81.033)
{Decrease)/ increase in deferred lax liabilities 98,60,644 98.81,033

Total deferred tax expense/ (benefit}

lIncome tax oxperlso{ (b_er!oﬁ_t_',l

{b} Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

: For the year ended For the year ended
If“"“"“"s March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Prafit before lax -5,17,32.018 15.17,60,841
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 28% (2021-22: 26%) -1,34,50,325 3,94,57,819
() Favntengtund inanime il ol sa g e disalbessed B s sseged i -
[} Tax impact on unr i carry forward of tax losses 1.24,50,325 3,07,22.444

{iil) Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable moome
{iv) Olers

70,58 217

Total income fax exponse

16,77,158

(c) Details of unrecognised carry-forward of tax losses with expiry date

[P As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Carry-forward of tax osses hal {unrecogrised) 1.60.40.115 1,52,37,030
Expiry

AY 2028-29 1,60,40,115 1,52,37,039

untants);, )
12000
| o




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

47. Ratio
Ratio Numerator Denominator Current Prev.mus ../' Reason for variance
Period Period Variance
Cash and Bank balance increased due to:
Current Ratio Current Assels Current Liabilities 1.55 0.54 188% |1) lower capital expenditure during the
financial year
Debi-Equity Ratio Total Debt Sharsholder's Equity - 0.15 | -100% |Not Applicable
Eamnings before interest,
depreciation and taxes Debt Service
Debt Service Coverage (Net Profil after iaxes + Non- [{Inlerest & Lease 1.47 525 79% Decrease in iumover due {o delay in
Ratio cash operating expenses like |Payments + Principal ) ) exacution of sub-lease plan
depreciation and other Repayments)
amoriizations + Interest)
Return on Equity Ratio Not Profits after taxes Q;Ege Shareholder's ©.01) 004 | 131% E:::::: :’flslﬂ;j::;:”ea:’ delay in
|Inventory tumover ratio* Cost of goods sold or Sales |Average Invantary NA NA NA Nol Applicable
Avgerage Trade
Trade Receivables lumover Total Sales receivables - 8.630.77 | -100% ‘There was no opening and closig deblor on
ratio (Opening + Closing e reporling date
|balance / 2)
Average Trade Payables
2::2 Payable tumover Tolat Purchases (Opening + Closing 41.63 12.26 Higher Capex then previous year.
balance / 2)
Net Sales Working Capital Increass in umover alongwilh balter
Nel capilal fumover ralio (Total Sales - Sales Returns) {Curreni Assets - Current 3.26 (0.88)] -472% |[realisation resulted into better working capilal
Liabililies) ratio
Reverio from cperfiona Decrease in tunover due lo delay in
Net profil ralio Net Profit afler Tax ({Total Revenue from (0.23) 042 | -155% .
opertions - Retums) execufion of sub-lease plan
Eaming before interest and Capital Employed Decrease in tumover due {o delay in
Relurn on Capital employed (Net Waorth + Intangible (0.01) 004 | -129% .
taxes Assets) exaculion of sub-lease plan
Retum on investment Gain on Inveslment Total Invesiment - 0.02 NA Invesl.mel_-n n lee.d Deposit during FY'23
featuring in the ratio.

*Sinca the company do not have inventory

48, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Based on the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013 (‘the Act’) readwith Schedule VIl to lhe Acl and the Companies (Corporaie
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, as amended, Corporate Social Responsibility is applicable to the Company.

Details of excess CSR expendilure under Section 135(5) of the Act

Balance excess spent as
at 1 April, 2022

Amount required to be
spent during the year

Amount spent during
the year

Balance excess spent as
at 31 March 2023

*The provisions of seclion 135(5) were not applicable on the company till FY 2021-22,

48. Corporate Sooial Code

The Code on Soclal Securlty, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to
Presidential assent in September 2020. 1he Code has been published in the G

and

during

ploy

1t and post:
tle of India and

ienlly on November 13, 2020 drafl rules were published and

d Indian P: 1t app!

invited for stakeholders’ suggeslions, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been nolified. The Company will assess the impaci of the Code
when It comes Into effect and will record any related Impact In the perlod the Code becomes effective,

50, Additional Regulatory Information required by Schedule lli
{a) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for helding benami property under the Benami Transaclions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of

1988) and Rules made

(b) Wilful defaulter

thereunder.

The Company has nul badn dedared wilful dufaulter by sy bank ar fiisncial institation ar goveianaent o any governnent autlaity,

{c) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no iransactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Aci, 1956.

{d) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

{e) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not eniered info any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year anded March 31, 2023

{f) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
() The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any oiher person or enlity, including foreign entity (Intermediary) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invesl in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the C
b. provide any guarantese, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficary

{Ultimate B iary) or

(i) The Company has not received any fund from any person or entily, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with lhe understanding (whether ded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ullimale Beneficiary) or

b. provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiary

{@) Undisclosed Income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the 1ax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 that has nol been
recorded in the books of accounts.

{h) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has noi raded or invested in crypto currency or virlual currency during the current or previous year.
(i) Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right-of-use Assets) and Intangible Assets

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use Assets) or Intangible Assels or both during the current or pravious year.

51. The Company has done an assessment to identify Core Investment Company (CIC} [ including CIC's in the Group ] as per the necessary guidelines of Reserve Bank of
India ( including Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). The Companies identified as CIC's al Group level are Panatone Finvest Limited , TATA
Capital Limited, TATA Industries Limited , TATA Sons Private Limited , TMF Holdings Limited and T S Investments Limited

52. Previous year's figure have been regrouped / reclassified wh y to correspond with the current year's figures.
53. The financial stalements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on Apr 10, 2023
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LIP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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